
 
 

 
 

1 

APPROVED AS WRITTEN  

AT THE BRISTOL BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING 12/20/2010 

  

BRISTOL BUDGET COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES 

December 13, 2010 

PRESENT: 

Shaun Lagueux-Chairman, Paul Simard-Vice Chairman, Barbara Greenwood, Dave Carr, Dorcas Gordon, 
Jon Thouin, Ron Preble, Ashley Dolloff, Tom Keegan, Dan Arseneau, Mark Chevalier, Selectman Jeff 
Shackett, Wendy Costigan 

OTHERS PRESENT:   

Town Administrator Michael Capone 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Chairman Lagueux called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. 

REVIEW OF MINUTES: 

 The meeting began with a review of the minutes from December 6, 2010; Vice Chairman Simard 
made a motion to accept the minutes and was seconded by Mr. Chevalier. The minutes were amended at 
the request of Chairman Lagueux, Mr. Preble and Mr. Thouin. A vote to accept the minutes as amended 
was passed unanimously. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

 Town Administrator explained that he discovered some formula errors in the excel program used 
for the budget.  The Select Board met on Tuesday and created a proposed budget and had planned to meet 
with the Budget Committee tonight.  However the errors necessitated a review of the budget before 
presenting it.  Town Administrator Capone apologized for the change of scheduling.  The errors were found 
late in the week, and did not allow enough time for the Select Board to review and revise in time for tonight’s 
meeting. 
 
 Town resident and taxpayer, Fred Roschow came to the meeting and asked for an opportunity to 
speak before the Budget Committee.  He came to speak to the combined Board of Selectmen and the 
Budget Committee as scheduled.  Mr. Roschow asked the Committee to do more than reduce the requested 
increases, he asked for cutting the budget.  He did not want it level funded to last year’s budget he 
suggested that the budget be cut 10% overall not across the board.  He expressed concern for the retired 
residents of Bristol. If the committee is trying to level fund he suggested level funding to the 2008 budget.  
The current tax bill is too high; the residents cannot afford this increase. Mr. Roschow knew of one 
community that was either reducing the town payroll by 12 employees and another was cutting their budget 
by $1.1 million. He questioned the need for some of the vehicles purchased in the last two years and their 
lack of use. Mr. Roschow also suggested the police not provide 24 hour coverage.  This was done in the 
past and the State Police was available when needed.  Health Insurance is another expense that is out of 
control one way to lower is to lower payroll, suggesting the police department reduce officers during the 
slower winter months and have more part-time in the busier summer months.  He concluded by stating it is 
difficult to make change but that is what’s needed.  
 Chairman Lagueux thanked Mr. Roschow for coming to the meeting.  



 
 

 
 

2 

 
Chairman Lagueux asked Town Administrator Capone to present the remaining departments on the budget.  
CONSERVATION COMMISSION: 

 Line 4611-412 – Conservation Water Testing:  This is the only line item that is consistently being 
used and currently is the only line item that is funded in this department.  The Conservation Commission is 
considering updating the wetlands ordinance and my need $1000 for legal services with this process.   
 Vice Chairman Simard spoke with Mason Westfall and he understood that any money given to the 
Conversation Commission stays with the Conservation Commission.  Town Administrator Capone asked if 
the Town ever approved a specific level of funding to maintain and purchase conservation land.  Chairman 
Lagueux stated they had funding but membership shrank and so did the funding.  However, he understands 
that membership has increased along with activity within.  They have a role in wetlands permits.    Vice 
Chairman Simard added that if there are unspent funds it should not go to a specific account.   Town 
Administrator stated he would look into the funds of the Conservation Commission and get let the Budget 
Committee know. 
 
HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION: 

 Line 4612 – Historic District Commission:  Town Administrator Capone stated that there are no 
changes.  The only floater is the wages for administration.  The number of required meetings fluctuates.  
Ms. Gordon replied that fewer businesses are opening downtown and as a result of complaints regarding 
the process they have made some changes to simplify the process and requires fewer meetings. 
 Chairman Lagueux asked if she expects an increase as a result of the redesign.  Ms. Gordon was 
not sure but maybe after the downtown square project is completed there might be more interest in opening 
a business downtown. 
 
PRINCIPAL LONG TERM DEBT: 

 Line 4711 and 4712 – Principal and Interest Long Term Debt:  Town Administrator plugged in the 
payment schedules.  Chairman Lagueux asked what the length of the bond was for the ladder truck.  Town 
Administrator Capone thinks it is for 7 years but he will find out and let the Chairman know. 
 
TAN (Tax on Anticipated Notes): 

 Line 4723 – Town Administrator Capone plugged in 7500 but will likely be lower.  He is reviewing 
the cash flow throughout the town and may have to borrow in the spring.  Mr. Shackett added that borrowing 
money is not what the Select Board likes to do and if it is needed then it will be for the lowest amount and 
for the shortest term possible.   
 Town Administrator Capone explained that TAN are usually for a year.  But, only the amount that is 
needed is taken and you pay it back as soon as possible.  Some of the planned projects are reimbursable 
which means the money has to be spent and then submit a request for reimbursement.  It is best to start the 
projects in the spring rather than wait until summer when the tax revenues have been paid.   
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS: 

 Line 4902 – Chairman Lagueux stated that he thought the Police Cruiser was included in the Police 
Departments budget.  Mr. Preble added that items, which are purchased annually, like protective clothing, 
and uniforms ought to be included within that department’s budget.  Chairman Lagueux agreed adding that 
most of the CIP items will go as warrant articles giving the voters the chance to vote on separate items.    
 
Vice Chairman Simard asked that a copy of the budget be emailed to the committee members so they can 
begin to work with it at home.  Town Administrator agreed to send one. 
 

 



 
 

 
 

3 

REVENUES: 

 Town Administrator Capone gave an anticipated revenue handout to each committee member.  
Chairman Lagueux thanked him but felt that previous actual revenue figures were needed to compare with.  
He asked for the previous year, current year and the anticipated numbers.  Town Administrator Capone will 
work on it. 
 A couple of items were explained – 3353-Highway Block Grant is money the State provides each 
year.  The State also gives money from the Rooms & Meals tax to the Town. 
The Federal Forest money comes from the Federal Government in payment for property owned by the 
Federal Government.  It was noted that flood control is down and asked if it was reimbursement for money 
spent.  It is payment in lieu of taxes for the property owns along the river.  Mr. Thouin asked if there was an 
incorrect entry regarding the Motor Vehicle Permit Fees for $435,000 and the Income from Debt for 
$435,000.  Town Administrator Capone that the numbers were correct it is simply coincidence that they are 
the same amount.  He added that he is working on a list of municipal revenues including sales of properties.   
The committee was reminded that the Water & Sewer revenues wash with the expenses.   

OTHER BUSINESS: 

Member Comments: 

 Mr. Preble asked if the non-profit organizations that did not attend or respond to the letter would 
receive funding.  The Newfound Chamber of Commerce was one of the groups that did not reply or come to 
the scheduled meeting.  They recently joined with the Chamber of Commerce in Plymouth and are not 
located in Bristol.   Mr. Preble stated that if these organizations do come and ask for funding we should not 
give them any.  Ms. Greenwood added that the marathon group was pulling away from the Newfound 
Chamber of Commerce because of the move to Plymouth.  Others questioned what the Chamber of 
Commerce did for the Town. 
 

Next Meeting: 

 A discussion regarding when the Budget Committee could meet with the Board of Selectmen took 
place.   Mr. Shackett stated that the Select Board would be meeting on Thursday, December 16, to review 
and revise their proposed budget.  They would be able to meet with the Committee on Monday, December 
20.  Town Administrator agreed to email the revised budget that will include the figures from the Select 
Board’s proposed budget on Friday to the Budget Committee members.  Allowing each member time to 
review the figures and be prepared to discuss this budget with the Board on Monday, December 20.    
 
 Chairman Lagueux called for a vote to agree to meet on Monday December 20, at 7:00pm with the 
Board of Selectmen.  Everyone agreed. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 Vice Chairman Simard made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Mr. Preble.  Meeting 
adjourned at 8:10pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Emily Hemingway 
Recording Secretary 


